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It is my pleasure to present Family Housing Association’s Annual Report and Financial 
Statements for the period ending 31st March 2020.

I was delighted to have been appointed as the Chair of the Board in October 2019, having 
previously been the Vice Chair. I would like to take the opportunity to thank Chris Foxall, the 
previous Chair, for his commitment to the organisation and for establishing a strong strategic 
vision and internal control framework.

In January we said farewell and thank you to Karen Dusgate and welcomed her 
replacement, Marcia Sinfield, to the organisation as its Chief Executive. Marcia has a wealth of 
experience both in housing associations and local government as evidenced by her smooth 
transition into the organisation. 

The Association’s financial performance and resilience remains strong. At the end of the financial 
year we completed our treasury refinancing, allowing us greater flexibility against our covenants to 
both invest in our stock and staff, and also develop and innovate.

Covid-19 has brought challenges to our staff, tenants and service users. As a Board we have been 
assured by the swift implementation of our business continuity plans which have ensured that 
essential service delivery has been maintained, whilst keeping our staff and tenants safe. 

The Board is looking forward to the next stage of our journey and we have recently introduced a 
Development and Asset Management Committee and a Remuneration and HR Committee to 
ensure we have the right governance structure and skills in place to support the organisation. 

I would like to conclude by thanking our Board Members for guiding the organisation strategically 
and for their ongoing commitment. Also thank you to all our staff for the values they exhibit every 
day to make a difference to the outcomes of tenants and service users and finally to our 
stakeholders, funders, councils and welsh government, who we work with. 

I look forward to working together to ensure Family Housing Association is the tenant, employer, 
and partner of choice.

Chair of  the Board Statement

Jackie Royall 
Chair of the Board
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I was delighted to join Family Housing, as its Chief Executive in January. The Board has set a 
clear strategic vision and line of sight to the business objectives for the leadership team to deliver.

What struck me, even before I joined the organisation, was the strong set of values embedded 
within this community housing association. These values came to the fore when presented with 
the challenges of the Covid-19 pandemic towards the end of the financial year.

As a business we have provided assurance to our Board, and key stakeholders, that we are a 
resilient business, able to manage the challenges Covid-19 presented, whilst continuing to take 
forward our business objectives. 

Our governance and internal control framework remain strong, as demonstrated by us again 
achieving a regulatory opinion of standard for both service delivery and financial resilience and 
risk.

There are challenges ahead for the sector and we will continue to work closely with the Board to 
monitor and plan how we both live with, and recover from, the impact of Covid-19. There will also 
be opportunities and we remain alert to these, whether it be responding to grant funding 
programmes or ensuring we have sufficient financial capacity to take advantage of opportunities 
to develop new homes and support the economic regeneration of communities. 

During this financial year we continued to be compliant with Welsh Housing Quality Standards. 
Alongside this we are working with others to understand how the challenges of climate change 
and the ambitions of decarbonisation impact on both our new developments and retrofitting our 
existing stock. Again, we see opportunities here as we play our role in “building back better”. 

All at Family Housing recognise that we are here to secure the best possible future, for our current 
and future tenants, and we are proud to work in communities, making a difference every day to 
the outcomes of tenants and service users.

A lot has happened in my first six months and I would also like to express my thanks to the Board, 
staff and tenants that make Family Housing a great organisation to work in. A special thanks to the 
staff for their commitment and support over the recent difficult months of the pandemic. 

I look forward with confidence to the next stage of our journey.

Chief  Executives Statement

Marcia Sinfield
Chief Executive
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Report of  the Board of  Management

Our Vision, Mission and Priorities
Our Vision is that by 2025 we will be a
landlord; employer and partner of choice; we 
will continue to make a positive difference to 
the lives of our tenants, staff and the 
communities we work in; we will have 
achieved an ambitious development 
programme and supported the foundational 
economy within the areas we work in Wales.

Our mission is to create strong, vibrant and 
resilient communities where people can live 
active, fulfilling, lives - living independently 
and safely.

We develop and manage social 
housing which includes general 
needs, specialist housing for Older 
People and Supported Housing, 
with 2,867 (2019: 2,855) homes 
across South West Wales. We also 
provide care and support services 
to vulnerable adults.

Our Area of  Operation
Ceredigion
48 homes

Pembrokeshire
40 homes

Carmarthenshire
842 homes

Swansea
1840 homes

Neath Port Talbot
97 homes

Our Business Priorities 
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Our Operational Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

Performance 2019/2020

New homes completed

2019/20: 12 2018/19: 53

Keeping our homes safe

Void rent loss Average time to 
let a new home

99.88% Gas servicing 
completed to time

100% of homes with a 
valid electrical certificate 

100% of properties 
comply with Control of 
Asbestos Regulations

95.10% of tenants were 
satisfied with their most 

recent repair 

89% of repairs completed 
Right First Time

99.83% Emergency repairs 
completed on time

2019/20: 31 days 

2018/19: 31 days

2019/20: 1.7% 

2018/19: 1.2%



 Page 8   Annual Report and Statement of Accounts

 www.fha-wales.com

Financial KPIs

For the year ended 31 March 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Properties owned and Managed 2,803 2,791 2,738 2,720 2,712

Properties owned Managed by Others 64 64 64 68 68

2,867 2,855 2,802 2,788 2,780

Operating Surplus as % of Turnover 27.6% 29.2% 31.4% 28.6% 29.4%

Rent Losses (voids and bad debts as % of 
rent and service charges receivable)

2.0% 2.1% 1.9% 3.8% 2.9%

Rent Arrears (gross arrears as % of rent 
and service charges Receivable) 

5.1% 4.5% 5.7& 6.0% 5.2%

Rent Arrears (Gross arrears [adjusted for 
Bad Debt Provision] as % of rent and 
service charges Receivable)

3.8% 2.7% 2.6% 2.1% 2.4%

Liquidity (Current assets divided by current 
liabilities)

0.51 1.42 1.16 1.07 1.30

EBITDA - MRI interest cover 133% 135% 148% 126% 120%

Gearing - Historic Property Cost 43% 36% 37% 38% N/A

Gearing - Net Worth * N/A N/A N/A 60% 60%

* - Gearing definition replaced by Historic Property Cost      



   Page 9Annual Report and Statement of Accounts

 www.fha-wales.com

In September, we launched MyHome 24/7, an app which allows tenants to report repairs, pay 
their rent, view rent statements, report anti social behaviour and update their details. Tenants 
were involved in the creation of the app and gave feedback at every stage of the development.  

Here is a breakdown of what has been achieved by our Money Solutions team:

Rent Affordability

It is important to us that our rents are affordable. 
After consulting with our tenants about what affordable 
means to them we decided to set our rents based on 
the Joseph Rowntree Foundation//Savills methodology.  
This uses the ONS Annual Survey of Hours and 
Earnings lower quartile and is adjusted to take into size 
of property.  When deciding whether rents are 
affordable, we also include criteria, all our general needs 
and supported housing homes are affordable. 

Tenants

Rent Arrears
This year the team have helped 236 tenants to generate £939,316 annually. 

The Money Solutions Team helped tenants to claim benefits and grants which tenants paid 
towards their rent accounts:

New tenancies getting tenants started on the right foot

£102,211
The team were successful in getting grant 
applications approved, which helped tenants 
with their moving expenses, furniture, 
reducing heating & council tax costs.

Maximising the income of tenants

£87,627
Housing Benefit

(HB)

£142,270
Universal Credit

(UC)

£36,338     
Grants towards 

rent arrears

Navigating your way through 
the benefits system can 
often be daunting, many 
decisions are taken to 
appeal and with the help and 
support of the Money 
Solutions Team, tenants 
were successfully able to 
claim what they were rightly 
entitled to.

• Tribunals
• JSA & ESA
• UC personal costs
• Disabled Benefit
• Tax Credit

100% of Tribunals won in the tenants favour 
£3,510  awarded plus backdate £2,300 
£165,893 awarded
£54,922 awarded plus backdate £27,194
£54,922 awarded plus backdate £27,194
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Tenants were asked a range of questions on how satisfied or dissatisfied* they are with aspects of 
the service provided by Family Housing. 

These questions are standard STAR (survey of tenants and residents) ‘core questions’. 

By asking these core questions, Family Housing are asking exactly the same questions as other 
housing associations in the UK meaning we can compare our results with other housing 
associations.

2019 Star Survey

Neither
12%

Dissatisfied
11%

Satisfied
77%

How satisfied are you with ...
value for money of your rent?

Neither
14%

Dissatisfied
16%

Satisfied
70%

How satisfied are you with ...
value for money of your 
service charge?

Neither
10%

Dissatisfied
9%

Satisfied
81%

How satisfied are you ...
that we give you information 
that is easy to understand?

Neither
08%

Dissatisfied
10%

Satisfied
82%

How satisfied are you with ...
your neighbourhood is a
 good place to live?

Neither
14%

Dissatisfied
11%

Satisfied
75%

How satisfied are you with ...
the opportunities that we give 
you to have your say about 
the way we do things?

Neither
10%

Dissatisfied
10%

Satisfied
80%

How satisfied are you with ...
the last repair we carried out 
in your home?
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Tenant Scrutiny Panel (TSP) 
 
Over the last year the Tenant Scrutiny Panel has:

• Carried out a review of leaflets and posters to ensure that we were giving a uniformity to tenants.
• Developed a new set of Service Standards which were launched at the staff conference. 
• Completed a review of whether tenants were at the heart of service delivery and decision making.  

During this work, the Panel became aware of the amount of tenant engagement going on behind 
the scenes towards this enterprise.

• The Chair of Tenant Scrutiny panel has attended Audit & Risk Committee, Board Away-days and 
other strategic meetings.

• Continued to work with Internal Auditors. 
 

Neither
09%

Dissatisfied
11%

Satisfied
80%

How satisfied are you with ...
general quality of your home?

Neither
15%

Dissatisfied
14%

Satisfied
71%

How satisfied are you  ...
that we listen to your views 
and act on them or explain 
why we can’t?

Neither
09%

Dissatisfied
09%

Satisfied
81%

How satisfied are you with ...
us as a landlord?

Neither
10%

Dissatisfied
13%

Satisfied
77%

How satisfied are you with ...
the way we maintain your 
home?

Neither
10%

Dissatisfied
12%

Satisfied
78%

How satisfied are you ...
that we are open and honest 
with you?

Neither
10%

Dissatisfied
12%

Satisfied
78%

How satisfied are you ...
that we provide the service 
you expect?
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It has been an exciting year for our care and support services. We started and completed an 
organisational restructure bringing two departments, Older Persons and Supported Living 
together to create a single Care and Support department.  The intention being to align our care and 
support services under one strategic direction and ensure we are fit for the future.

During this financial year we started our journey to further develop our services using a 
Psychologically Informed Environment (PIE) framework. We developed our 360° Psychological 
Model (360°) for use across our service provision. This model provides a dynamic framework that 
at its core believes that service users engage in behaviours, no matter how detrimental, because 
they offer purpose and direction in their lives.  There are four key elements to our framework:

• Explore:   Assessment and key working 
• Engage:   Working with resistance and low motivation 
• Enact:       Specific modules based  
• Empower:   Strengths based practice and positive psychology 
 
We continue to grow our influence and develop further strategic relationships with both 
commissioners and stakeholders. This financial year saw us re-enter the competitive tendering 
market and submit tenders for very different types of services, one in partnership with another 
organisation with whom we hope that we can grow a strong relationship in the future. We also 
secured funding for the provision of an emergency bed for homelessness in Swansea.  

In the next financial year, we are focusing on further developing and embedding our psychological 
approach to service delivery as well as strengthening co-production across services. We will also 
review our services to ensure they continue to be able to support the people that use our services 
in the most effective way and continue to increase our influence across the sectors we work in. We 
will support the communities in which we provide services and work proactively in partnership with 
others to develop and deliver new services.

Our Homes 

Continuing to comply with Welsh Housing Quality Standards is a priority for us and we are 
committed to reducing the number of acceptable fails. In October 2018, the Board of Management 
approved an increase in the planned maintenance budget of £2.2m to be spent by 31st March 
2021. 

During 2019/20 we spent £1.15m on improving Tenants homes, this included the installation of: 

Care and Support

134 new Kitchens 85 new boilers 65 properties had 
new windows installed

52 new bathrooms

We also spent a total of £358k on adapting homes to meet tenants needs. 

We are also working with other community based associations and Welsh Government to explore 
how we can achieve the Welsh Governments target of Energy Performance Certificate (EPC A) 
on all our homes by 2030. 
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Tenants income’s have been affected by welfare reform. COVID-19 will also have an impact on 
their income. This means that we need to be efficient at collecting our income, economic with how 
we use it and make sure that when we invest, the money is used effectively to benefit our tenants. 
To do these things we know that we need to listen to what our tenants want and be innovative in 
how we provide services; saving time and money wherever possible.  

Achieving value for money means we can provide homes of a good standard to those who need 
them, attractive neighbourhoods where people want to live and a range of programmes to help 
improve tenant life chances through employment and better health and wellbeing.

Value for Money
At Family Housing we know how important it is to provide the best value for money we can for our 
tenants and service users. As a social landlord our main income is rent, and it’s important that we 
make every pound go as far as possible in benefitting our tenants and neighbourhoods. Any 
surplus we make is invested into our homes and communities, so we will always plan to be as 
efficient and effective as possible in all our activities. 

In order to deliver our vision, it is essential that we make the best use of the resources available 
to us, and therefore we will:

Concentrate on 
those things 

that add value 
to our 

customers, as 
interpreted by 

them

Ensure what we 
do is done as 
efficiently and 
cost effectively 

as possible

Where possible, achieve 
added value from the 
resources we use to 
enhance the lives of our 
customers

The traditional definition of value for money is 
“the optimal use of resources to achieve the intended outcomes”. 

This should be achieved with a balance of economy, efficiency, effectiveness and equity.

Our approach to VFM has been embedded in our Self-Evaluation process and we consider:

Costs and cost 
drivers

Areas where savings can 
be made with least

 impact on satisfaction

Areas where 
improvements can be 
made with maximum 
impact on satisfaction

Peer benchmarking 
and comparison

Create a culture that 
enables everyone to 
contribute towards 
VFM
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We hold the Welsh Government Corporate Health Standard Gold 
award, which recognises our commitment to employee wellbeing.
We recognise the importance of mental health and have pledged 
out support to the Time to Change campaign and have trained 
champions to support our people to talk about their mental health.

Our People
We believe that work plays a significant part in people’s lives and so we want our organisation to 
be a happy, fulfilling and a healthy place. We are committed to creating and sustaining a working 
environment that supports individuals in their personal and professional development and in terms 
of their health and well-being.

This year we have been recognised in the Sunday Times Top 100 Best Not for 
Profit Organisations to work for, with very good levels of employee engagement. 

This is how our people rated their levels of 
satisfaction with key workplace factors: 

We use Best Companies and internal employee surveys 
to inform our people strategies and support the delivery 
of our key business objective ‘to provide security for FHA 
staff; for our staff to have a great environment to work in 
and opportunities for development, growth and 
progression’.
In response to low satisfaction rates in the ‘Fair Deal’ 
factor we have: 

Accessed funded apprenticeship training for 5 staff with a further 9 working towards 
completion in the coming year

Looking ahead we will be focussing on our approach to agile working, the impact of Covid 19 has 
meant that the world of work has changed forever; we need to adapt and respond to the situation 
and align our people strategies and policies. We will do this with our staff, we will continue to use 
surveys and other communication methods to determine our ‘new normal’ together. 
A significant project in the coming year is to consider our branding, to achieve our vision as a 
landlord, employer and partner of choice we need to be widely known for who we are, the services 
we offer and the great work we do. This is an opportunity to relaunch ourselves with our renewed 
vision and ambition.

Paid a cost of living increase

Completed a pay benchmarking exercise across all 
sectors and increased salaries to the benchmark 
median; we have committed to undertaking pay 
benchmarking reviews every 3 years

Implemented the Real Living Wage across the organisation

We are committed to developing our people, during the year we have: 
Delivered 1,126 training days
4 staff have gained professional qualifications with a further 10 working toward 
completion in the coming year
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We have embarked upon an ambitious new 
development programme which will see the 
delivery of 700 new affordable homes over the 
next 10 years in line with our Business Plan 
objectives. 

During the financial year we acquired 12 new 
2 and 3 bed houses at Parc Brynderi, Llanelli.  

During the year our development at Benson 
Road, Penclawdd was under construction 
with the completion of 12 new 2 and 3 bed 
houses anticipated in June 2020. 

Our development programme will be guided by the principles of delivering homes of a type and 
in a location that our tenants wish to live in. We will seek to ensure that all developments meet 
energy efficient levels as we work towards the eventual aim of Zero Carbon Homes. We have 
established a Development & Asset Management Committee, comprising of Board Members 
who will each have an active role is assessing development opportunities and driving our 
development programme forward over the coming years. 

We will be working, wherever possible, with local SME builders and contractors to deliver our 
development programme, recognising the importance of these businesses to the local economy. 
The Association is also committed to working collaboratively with other RSLs, Local Authorities 
and other partner organisations in the delivery of the highest quality new homes through the 
region.

We are committed to reducing our carbon footprint in new-build development projects, including 
an ambition to achieve EPC A wherever possible. Learning from the IHP (Welsh Government’s 
Innovative Housing programme) is helping to shape this.

Development Programme

Parc Brynderi, Bynea, Llanelli

Benson Road, Penclawdd
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Zero Carbon

We will invest in developing 
our decarbonisation plan.

We will work to minimise the carbon 
footprint of our homes, offices and transport.

We will work with partners to maximise the 
impact of our decarbonisation opportunities.

We will work with our communities to 
encourage understanding of the impact of 
behaviours and to support positive 
behaviour change.

1

2

3

4
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Health and Safety

Health and Safety Management at Family Housing Association, under the guidance of our Health 
and Safety Manager, has roles and responsibilities assigned at all levels, from the Board through 
to staff, with line management having clear responsibilities and accountabilities for delivery and 
compliance.
 
The Association’s Health and Safety Group meets every six weeks and provides updates on the 
Association’s performance in managing health and safety. The Health and Safety Group receives 
updates from other related subgroups:

The Audit and Risk Committee monitors health and safety across the association, the Health 
and Safety Manager provides quarterly reports to the Committee, and the quality of information 
is continuously improving and evolving, to meet best practice and provide enhanced proactive 
performance management. 

An audit of our Association’s Health and & Safety policies to be undertaken.

A review and update has been undertaken of the organisation’s approach to Risk 
Assessments to cover both premises and tasks.

A review of the Association’s Health and Safety requirements, which includes
Mandatory training, an E-Learning programme and Toolbox talks to be covered by the 
departments has been undertaken.

Monitoring of Health and Safety, Accident Investigation, recording and learning lessons 
from near misses and active Inspections of all communal areas have been our major 
focus throughout the year to improve the management of health and safety.

An overall Health and Safety Plan, and Roadmap is in place. This Plan has set targets for all 
aspects of health and safety including legal compliance, guidance standards and accepted good 
practice. The Plan is monitored by the Senior Management Team, Managers and through the 
Health and Safety Group, and requires:

Fire Safety Order Team  – leads on ensuring the Association complies with the 
Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) order.

Health and Safety Group – leads on compliance with the various 
legislative requirements under the Health and Safety at Work Act and the 
Housing Act.

Health & Wellbeing Group – leads on the promotion of employee health and 
wellbeing and manages the Corporate Health Standard assessment process.
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Board of  Management

The Board of Management currently comprises of twelve non-executive members. The Board 
are responsible for directing the affairs of the Association. Board Members are drawn from a 
wide background bringing together professional, commercial and local experience together with 
tenant representatives. The Board met regularly, usually monthly, during 2019/20 and was 
supported by an Audit and Risk Committee. 

The Board is responsible for the Association’s strategy and policy framework. It delegates the 
day to day management and implementation of that framework to the Chief Executive and other 
senior executives and managers (the Leadership Team). The Leadership Team has regular 
meetings during the year and attend the Board of Management meetings.

Internal Financial Control

The Board is responsible for the Association’s system of internal financial controls which is 
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding the safeguarding of 
assets, the maintenance of proper accounting records and the reliability of financial information. 
The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal controls for the period from 
1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020.

The procedures that have been established which are designed to provide on-going effective 
internal financial controls are:

• Written financial procedures with headline delegated authorities;
• Comprehensive system of financial reporting including annual budgets and quarterly    

management accounts, to report actual performance against budget and to highlight       
variances;

• Monitoring of the internal financial controls and procedures by the Association’s internal 
auditor and (for the year-end) by the external auditors. These reports are reviewed by Audit 
and Risk Committee and the Board of Management.

The Board receives regular reports detailing financial trends, treasury risks, covenant compliance 
and development programme status.

The Board is committed to the management of risk in order to achieve the vision and goals of 
the organisation, and to remain a viable and sustainable business. The Welsh Government, as 
regulator of the housing association sector, has increased its focus on the management of risk, 
expecting housing associations and particularly their Boards to fully understand the business 
and financial risk environment in which they operate and to be confident that these risks are 
effectively managed.

Corporate Governance Report
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Governance

In December 2019, the Association retained its Standard/Standard Regulatory Judgements, in 
both the areas for Governance and Service Delivery and Financial Viability. A Regulatory 
Assurance Plan (RAP) is in place. There were no significant issues highlighted in the RAP, the 
three areas of focus were:

• Stress testing and mitigation analysis of the business plan is undertaken annually.
• Data on the financial and social performance of assets is used to inform investment decisions.
• A number of fire safety issues at a site which the association is actively addressing.

The Board has adopted and complies with the CHC Code of Governance. During the year, 
Regulatory touch points have been agreed with Board and the Regulator and are monitored as 
they are progressed.

Internal Control

The Board acknowledge their ultimate responsibility for ensuring that the Group has in place a 
system of controls that is appropriate to the various business environments in which it operates;

a) the Board has in place a formalised framework for the identification, review and management  
    of risk;
b) the safeguarding of the health and safety of tenants and staff of risk; 
c) the reliability of financial information used within the Association or for publication;
d) the maintenance of proper accounting records; 
e) the safeguarding of assets against unauthorised use or disposition.

The Board ensures that it can govern effectively by having a clear approach to recruitment,
induction, training and appraisal as set out below:

Evaluation & Appraisal – The Board is committed to robust governance and ensuring it has the 
skills required to address the areas of improvement and manage the organisation in the future.  The 
Board is very aware of the benefits of evaluation, appraisal and is committed to continuous learning 
and development. 

Remuneration – FHA Board Members are not currently remunerated, they receive reimbursement 
of travel costs and out of pocket expenses in the fulfilment of their role. Board has considered a 
Board Member Renumeration Business Case and is awaiting the results of a consultation exercise 
before making a final decision. 

Committees – During the year an Audit and Risk Committee was in place. This Committee meets 
four times a year and its purpose is to advise and provide assurance to the Board on the adequacy 
and effectiveness of internal controls.
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It should be noted that in March 2020 Board agreed to update its governance structure and 
establish two further Committees, a Development and Asset Management Committee and a HR 
and Remuneration Committee. These Committees will further reinforce strong governance and 
support the achievement of the Board’s Business Objectives.

The Terms of Reference of the Audit and Risk Committee requires the Committee to submit 
regular reports to the Board on the effectiveness of the internal controls environment, including 
an Annual Report. 
 
During the year the Committee has dealt with the strategic processes for risk, control and 
governance through the results of the internal and external audits as well as a self-evaluation 
process. The Committee plays a key role in defining aspects of the audit work and monitoring the 
management responses to the issues raised.

The Audit & Risk Committee during 2019/20 - Membership of the Committee during the year was 
as follows:
• Tina Gabb, Committee Chair
• Angela Van Den Bogerd (Vice Chair)
• Max Humber 
• Mel Rayner (Co-optee)
 
The Committee was also attended routinely by:
• Chief Executive
• Executive Director of Finance & Business Services 
• Executive Director People, Communities & Assets
• Head of Governance & Company Secretary 
• Health & Safety Manager
• Chair of Tenant Scrutiny Panel
• Executive Support Assistant
• TIAA - Internal Audit
• Bevan Buckland LLP- External audit

Four meetings were held. There were no other additional meetings during the year in response to 
events or issues. Representatives of external and internal audit were present at meetings and the 
Executive Support Assistant provided secretarial support for the Committee.

All Committee members contributed to discussions. The Committee Members functioned well as a 
group and continued to pose pertinent and timely questions. Members of the Committee have the 
requisite expertise and experience. 

Reporting to and from the Board

The Committee sets great store by ensuring effective communication both by the Committee to 
the Board and by the Board to the Committee.
 
In addition to the formal minutes of every Committee meeting the Board receives a verbal update 
from the Committee Chair. The Board meeting agenda includes an item which allows the ARC 
Committee Chair to give feedback on matters of relevance for the Board.
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Overview of  progress on priorities we set ourselves last year

The Committee continued to review a range of issues to ensure that its remit was fulfilled. This 
has been driven by our Business Plan and Risk Management Plan, with Members able to request 
reports or details of follow-up actions on specific areas of concern.
 
The Association secured a Regulatory Judgement for both Governance and Financial Viability of 
Standard/Standard. This offered new opportunities for the Association to explore treasury options 
which will result in us being able to fulfil our business objectives around growth, our offer to our 
tenants and staff and our ability to invest in our homes.
 
Specific priorities for the Committee in 2019/20 were agreed at the January 2019 Committee. At 
each meeting, ARC receives an update on the progress and implementation of actions arising from 
internal audit reviews as well as full audit reports. For each assurance review and assessment of 
the combined effectiveness of the controls in mitigating the key control risks is provided.

Substantial 
Assurance

Based upon our 
findings there is a 
robust series of 
suitably designed 
internal controls in 
place upon which the 
Organisation relies to 
manage the risk of 
failure of the 
continuous and 
effective achievement 
of the objectives of 
the process, which at 
the time of our review 
were being 
consistently applied.

Reasonable 
Assurance

Based upon our 
findings there is a 
series of controls in 
place, however there 
are potential risks that 
they may not be 
sufficient to ensure 
that the individual 
objectives of the 
process are achieved 
in a continuous and 
effective manner. 
Improvements are 
required to enhance 
the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the 
controls to mitigate 
these risks.

Limited 
Assurance

Based upon our 
findings the controls 
in place are not 
sufficient to ensure 
that the organisation 
can rely upon them 
to manage the risks 
to the continuous and 
effective achievement 
of the objectives of 
the process. 
Significant 
improvements are 
required to improve 
the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the 
controls.

No
Assurance

Based upon our 
findings there is a 
fundamental 
breakdown or 
absence of core 
internal controls such 
that the organisation 
cannot rely upon 
them to manage the 
risks to the 
continuous and 
effective achievement 
of the objectives of 
the process. 
Immediate action is 
required to improve 
the adequacy and 
effectiveness of 
controls.
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During the year, the results of the audits were as follows:

2019/20 Audit Plan Audit Rating
Quarterly Core Compliance 
Reviews

No significant findings of non-compliance were identified 
during the reviews

Compliance Review of Information 
Governance - Data Integrity

Reasonable Assurance

Appraisal Review of Assets & 
Liabilities

Reasonable Assurance

Assurance Review of Development 
Contract Management

Reasonable Assurance

Compliance Review of Duty of Care 
- Gas Safety

Substantial Assurance

Compliance Review of Duty of Care 
- Legionella

Substantial Assurance

Compliance Review of Key 
Financial Controls

Reasonable Assurance

Appraisal Review of Health & 
Safety – Lone Working

Reasonable Assurance

Follow-up Review As a result of these reviews, 26 recommendations have 
been made by TIAA. This volume of recommendations is 
comparable with what our auditors have seen across the 
sector. The Association has implemented 25 of the 26 
recommendations. Internal audit advised us that this 
level of progress puts the Association in the top quartile in 
following-up and implementing actions and 
recommendations.

The Internal Audit Strategy Plan was discussed at the January 2020 meeting. It sets out the
internal audit activity for the period 2020-2023 and is sufficiently flexible to adapt to the emerging 
changes in the organisation and its environment. 

Bevan Buckland LLP remain our external auditors and have issued the 2019/20 clean audit 
certificate. A number of review points were raised in the Management Letter. The Association has 
an action plan in place to deal with these, mainly historic issues, and their completion will be 
monitored by the Audit and Risk Committee. The Association has plans to increase the capacity of 
its finance team to support the resolution of these matters. 

The Committee has operated to a high standard during the year and has received appropriate, 
regular and timely information about the production of Family Housing’ annual accounts and the 
control environment. Taking account of the results of the scrutiny which the Committee has 
conducted on the Board’s behalf during the year, and informed by the findings of both internal and 
external audit, by the responses and representations of management and by the evidence of the 
control environment provided by them, the Committee is of the following opinion:
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• The comprehensiveness, reliability and integrity of the assurances provided are appropriate for 
meeting the governance needs of the Board and for supporting the decisions they have taken 
and their accountability obligations;  

• The Company Secretary can be assured that FHA’s control, risk and governance position 
in 2019/20 provided a sound and reasonable basis for the completion of this Governance 
Statement; 

• An effective process of risk management is in operation which supports the above assurances; 
• Financial management has been applied with rigour, and reliance can be placed on the accuracy 

of the financial reports which have been routinely presented to the Board; 
• High quality internal and external audit advice, assurance and support have been received 

throughout the year from TIAA and Bevan Buckland LLP. 

Risk Identification & Management
The Association has reviewed its risk strategy and management. The Board articulated its risk 
appetite. The Association’s Risk Map allows risks to be mapped, control measures identified, and 
responsibility allocated. The management of risks is reported to the Audit and Risk Committee on 
a quarterly basis to monitor whether the risk profile is changing and to provide assurance that risk 
is being managed effectively across the organisation. The Association’s performance reporting is 
now integrated with the Risk Map. The Risk Map will be reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee 
as part of its annual review process.
 
A review is currently being undertaken to consolidate the reporting of risks to ARC and Board. This 
review also seeks to strengthen assurance against the three lines of defence.

Covid-19 represents a significant risk to all businesses. Family Housing has deployed it Business 
Continuity Plan to manage our response. The Audit and Risk Committee and Board are regularly 
briefed and the response to date has also provided assurance to key stakeholders including the 
Regulator and funders.

Our risk management is linked to our 
performance management framework. 
Strategic and sector risks are considered 
throughout the year, and for each risk 
we consider mitigations should the risks 
materialise. We also stress test our 
Business Plan as well as having recovery 
plans in place. The Board is kept regularly 
updated. There is a specific committee 
dedicated to risk, the Audit and Risk 
Committee. This Committee considers 
the risks and provides direction and 
guidance. Board sets the risk appetite for 
Family Housing. 
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Financial Performance

The 2019/20 financial statements are prepared under Financial Reporting Standard (FRS 102) 
accounting standard and Housing statement of recommended practice (SORP 2018).

As detailed in the financial statements, the financial result for the year ending 31st March 2020 is a 
deficit before re-measurement of pension liability of £18,705k (2019: Surplus £1,713k). The deficit 
reflects the costs involved in refinancing, including the breaking of £32m of fixed interest loans. 
The refinancing costs overshadow the significant work undertaken over recent years to improve 
the financial performance of the Association and delivery of the demanding nature of the financial 
spending priorities. The Association continues to invest in its day to day management activities of 
its housing stock, the development programme, the estate and technology.

The financial statements also include a Statement of Cash Flows which has been set out in 
accordance with the Welsh Government accounting determination. This requires the statement 
of both cash flow and free cash flow which is considered to be a closer definition of operational 
efficiency. 

For the year ended 31 
March

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Total Turnover 22,391 21,507 21,013 19,925 19,216

Operating Surplus 6,186 6,283 6,594 5,693 5,651

Surplus after tax (18,705) 1,713 2,063 1,105 1,261

(Deficit) / Surplus for the year 
transferred to reserves

(15,772) (1,058) 2.105 1,007 1,284

Turnover has increased by £884k (4.1%) compared to previous year, driven by the increase in 
rents as set out by Welsh Government rent policy, combined with the increase in the number of 
homes owned.

Void loss was 1.7% (2019: 1.2%). Void management remains a priority for continued improvement.

Total operating costs increased by £981k. The Association’s operating surplus fell to 27.6% of 
turnover (2019: 29.2%). The Association is continuing to review management and service costs 
throughout the organisation to ensure that the future structure is fit for purpose and is able to 
deliver efficient and responsive services to tenants.

Interest payable on borrowings was £24.9m (2019: £4.6m) the significant majority of the increase 
results from the costs of breaking the fixed rate loans and the associated arrangement facility fees 
incurred to secure the new facilities.
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Our covenants, in respect of interest cover, asset cover and debt per unit were all met.

As part of our annual corporate planning process we have set our 2020/21 Budget and prepared 
the 30 year Business Plan. The Medium Term Financial Plan identifies that we will continue to 
increase our debt as we realise our ambition of 700 affordable homes over the next ten years. 
Over that period, we will continue to improve our housing assets as part of our WHQS work and 
ongoing commitment to asset improvement. 

The Business Plan is subject to annual approval by the funders and is reviewed by the Regulator 
as part of its regulatory judgement. The Plan includes a number of key assumptions such as stock 
condition survey costs, inflation and interest rates, rent increases, impact of welfare reform, the 
level of empty homes and management costs. Key elements of the assurance process include 
regular review of assumptions and robust stress testing of the final business plan.   It is pleasing 
to note a Regulatory Judgement of a Standard which confirms that we meet viability requirements 
and have the financial capacity to deal with scenarios appropriately.

The Association completed the first phase of its refinancing programme in March 2020. The 
refinance led to fixed rate interest loans with Barclays of £30m and £2m being broken, to be able 
to take advantage of lower interest rates to enable the income and expenditure account to support 
a development strategy, increased maintenance and implementation of the workforce plan.

The break costs of £20.165m were funded by a new £10m loan with Principality and a bond with 
GBSH.

The refinance achieved the following:

• Increased ‘gearing’ headroom to 60% to support growth aspirations.
• Diversified the funding mix (recognising Barclays is by far the largest lender to FHA) and 

secured new capital markets lending (GBSH) and bank funding (Principality).
• Achieved a more standard mix of fixed vs floating rate debt, whilst maintaining interest rate 

protection. Currently 53% fixed vs drawn debt (reduced from 97%) with opportunities to further 
fix pending outcome of treasury strategy.

• Partially broke Barclays fixed rates enabling stronger negotiating position for gearing increase.
• Broke relatively high fixed rate debt, reducing interest costs & improving interest cover.
• Created a more robust and flexible treasury platform for FHA going forward.

We are now in a position to formulate a medium/longer term treasury strategy to support delivery 
of the new business plan with a key element being to potentially lock in fixed rates at a time of 
historic lows to give greater certainty and control around interest rate risk going forward.

As at 31st March 2020, cash and cash equivalents totalled £4.4m (2019: £5.5m). Our debt ratio 
is 47% variable and 53% fixed interest rates. This is below the optimal fixed rate levels defined 
in our Treasury Management Policy, primarily driven by the fact that the refinance took place 
later than anticipated in the year. The position is under constant review, and with interest rates 
currently at unprecedented low rates, there is minimal interest rate risk at present.
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Looking Ahead
We will continue to ensure costs are closely scrutinised, but equally importantly we will focus on 
innovation and service delivery to maximise the return on our assets and our social value.

We are committed to improve our performance and efficiency to deliver best value for money to 
our tenants and stakeholders. 

We will continue to take the steps necessary to achieve our business objectives, this includes:

• Manage our response to, and the impact of, Covid-19, ensuring that we maintain the financial 
resilience of the organisation, deliver essential services and keep staff, tenants and service 
users safe. 

• Continue our plan to deliver around 700 new homes over the next ten years.
• Secure the next stage of our Treasury Strategy.
• Further invest in our stock and support the decarbonisation agenda.
• Enhance our App, ‘My Home 24/7’, improving the digital and self-serve options available to our 

customers, providing a much greater choice of how and when they access our services.
• Improve transparency reporting and effectively communicate our performance and how well 

we are doing against other similar organisations.
• Aim to spend 95p in every pound in Wales, supporting local businesses and the Welsh economy.
• Understand and address areas of tenant satisfaction concern and set ourselves challenging 

targets on our front-line service performance, including on tenant arrears, void turnarounds 
and customer satisfaction.

• Implement our project management methodology to deliver five strategic projects covering 
tenant engagement, rebranding, replacement of care and support software, service charges 
and mobile working.

• Continue to contribute to achieving the ambition set by the Welsh Government in its Well-being 
of Future Generations (Wales) Act. 
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Statement of  Board Responsibilities
The Board of Management is responsible for preparing the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.

The Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act and Registered Social Landlord legislation 
requires the Board of Management to prepare financial statements for each financial year which 
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Association and of the surplus or deficit of the 
Association for that period. 

In preparing those financial statements, the Board of Management is required to:

• select suitable accounting policies, as described on pages 38 to 46 and apply them on a 
consistent basis;

• make judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable;
• state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material 

departures disclosed and explained in these financial statements; and
• Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume 

that the Association will continue in business.

The Board of Management is responsible for keeping proper accounting records that are sufficient 
to show and explain the Association’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at 
any time the financial position of the Association and to enable them to ensure that the financial 
statements comply with the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the Housing 
and Regeneration Act 2008, The Accounting Requirements for Registered Social Landlords General 
Determination (Wales) 2015, and the Statement of Recommended Practice for Registered Social 
Housing Providers issued in 2018. 

The Board of Management is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Association and 
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Board are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information 
included on the Association’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation 
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

In so far as the Board of Management is aware:

• There is no relevant audit information of which the Association‘s auditors are unaware; and
• The Board of Management have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make 

themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware 
of that information.

Auditors
At the September 2015 AGM, shareholders of Family Housing Association (Wales) Ltd voted in 
favour to the appointment of Bevan Buckland LLP Chartered accountants to carry out statutory 
financial audit for a term of 3 years. At the AGM in September 2018, the appointment was extended 
for a further year and at the AGM in September 2019, the appointment was extended for another 
year.

By order of the Board.
Jackie Royall
Chair of the Board 
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BOARD MEMBERS

The Board of Management and Executive Officers are listed on page 3.

The Association has an open policy for members of Board of Management on holding its £1 
shares. Each member of the Board of Management of the Association holds a £1 share.

The Board is responsible for the Association’s overall strategy and policy framework and ensuring 
that there is an established and maintained system of internal controls for reviewing their 
effectiveness. It delegates the day to day management and implementation of that framework 
to the Chief Executive and other senior executives and managers (the Leadership Team). The 
Leadership Team has regular meetings during the year and attend the Board of Management 
meetings.

Board members are drawn from a wide background bringing together professional, commercial 
and local experience together with tenant representatives. 

Board Membership Full Years’ 
Service

Jackie Royall Chair of Board from October 2019 3 years

Christopher Foxall Chair of Board to September 2019 5 years

Tony Larcombe Resigned from the Board September 2019 9 years

Tina Gabb Chair of ARC 5 years

Karen Jackson Resigned from the Board September 2019 4 years

Deborah Smyth 4 years

Michael Kavanagh Vice Chair of Board to September 2019, 
Resigned from the Board November 2019

4 years

Martin Ridgeway Chair of Development & Asset Management 
Committee

4 years

Matthew Channel Resigned from the Board September 2019 4 years

Angela Van Den Bogerd Vice Chair of Board from October 2019, Chair of 
HR & Remuneration Committee

1 year

Donna Jones 1 year

Max Humber 1 year

Keith Bowen Appointed September 2019 < 1 year

Steffan Phillips Appointed September 2019 < 1 year

Mel Rayner Co-opted September 2019 < 1 year

Hamish Munro Co-opted September 2019 < 1 year
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FAMILY HOUSING 
ASSOCIATION (WALES) LIMITED REGISTERED UNDER THE CO-OPERERATIVE AND 
COMMUNITY BENEFIT SOCIETIES ACT 2014
Year ended 31st March 2020

In addition to our audit on the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020, we have 
reviewed the Board’s statement of Family Housing Association (Wales) Ltd (“the association”) 
compliance with the Welsh Government Circular 02/10, Internal Financial Control and Financial 
Reporting (“the Circular”). 

The objective of our review is to enable us to conclude on whether the Board has provided the 
disclosures required by the Circular and whether the statement is consistent with the information 
of which we are aware from our audit work on the financial statements. 

We are not required to form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s corporate 
governance procedures or its internal financial control. 

Opinion 
With respect to the Board’s statement on internal financial control on page 18, in our opinion the 
Board of Management has provided the disclosures required by the Circular and the statement 
is consistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit work in the financial 
statements. 

Bevan Buckland LLP
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors
Langdon House
Langdon Road 
Swansea
SA1 8QY

Date: 29th July 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FAMILY HOUSING ASSOCIATION 
(WALES) LIMITED REGISTERED UNDER THE CO-OPERERATIVE AND COMMUNITY BENEFIT 
SOCIETIES ACT 2014
Year ended 31st March 2020

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Family Housing Association (Wales) Ltd for the year 
ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in reserves, the statement of financial position, the cash flow statement and its related 
notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable 
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice), including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic 
of Ireland”.

In our opinion the financial statements: 
• give a true and fair view of the state of the Association’s affairs as at 31st March 2020 and of its 

income and expenditure for the year then ended;  
• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 

Practice;
• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Co-operative and Community Benefit 

Societies Act 2014, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Requirements 
for Registered Social Landlords General Determination (Wales) 2015. 

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) 
and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Association in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) 
require us to report to you where:
• the Boards’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 

statements is not appropriate; or
• the Board have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that 

may cast significant doubt about the Association’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern 
basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial 
statements are authorised for issue.

Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board are responsible for the other information. 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the 
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
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with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material 
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the 
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report that fact.  We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FAMILY HOUSING ASSOCIATION 
(WALES) LIMITED
Year ended 31st March 2020
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Co-operative and 
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 require us to report to you if, in our opinion: 
i. a satisfactory system of control over transactions has not been maintained; or 
ii. the Association has not kept proper accounting records; or 
iii. the financial statements are not in agreement with the books of account of the Association; or 
iv. we have not received all the information and explanations we need for our audit.

Responsibilities of the board
As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Board (set out on page 27), the 
Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they 
give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Board determine is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Board are responsible for assessing the Association’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board either intend to liquidate the 
Association or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on 
the Financial Reporting Council’s website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 
description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the Association’s members, as a body, in accordance with Part 7 of the 
Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so 
that we might state to the Association’s members those matters we are required to state to them in 
an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept 
or assume responsibility to anyone other than the association and the association’s members as a 
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Bevan Buckland LLP
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors
Langdon House
Langdon Road 
Swansea
SA1 8QY
Date: 29th July 2020
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 
for the year ended 31st March 2020 
 

 
 

 
 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
 
Historical cost surpluses and deficits were identical to those shown in the income and 
expenditure account. 
 
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 29th July 2020 and signed 
on its behalf by: 
 
 

 
 
 
 

J Royall   T Gabb    F Ali 
 (Chair - Board)  (Chair Audit & Risk)   (Secretary) 
  

2020 2019
Notes £'000 £'000

Turnover 2 22,391 21,507

Operating expenditure 2 (16,205) (15,224)

Operating Surplus 5 6,186 6,283

Surplus on sale of fixed assets 6 15 16

Interest receivable and other income 7 17 23

Interest payable and similar charges 8 (24,923) (4,611)

Surplus / (deficit) before tax (18,705) 1,711

Taxation 9 - 2

Surplus / (deficit) after tax (18,705) 1,713
Initial recognition of multi-employer defined 
benefit scheme 16 - (1,527)
Actuarial gains / (losses) in respect of pension 
schemes 16 2,933 (1,244)

Total comprehensive income for the year (15,772) (1,058)
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Statement of Changes in Reserves 
for the year ended 31st March 2020 

 
 
 
 

 
 
  

Total 
Notes reserves

£'000
Balance as at 1 April 2018 10,905

Surplus after tax from statement of comprehensive income 1,713
Initial recognition of multi-employer defined benefit scheme (1,527)
Actuarial losses in respect of pension schemes (1,244)
Total comprehensive income for the year (1,058)

Balance at 1 April 2019 9,847

Deficit after tax from statement of comprehensive income (18,705)
Actuarial gains in respect of pension schemes 2,933
Total comprehensive income for the year (15,772)

Balance at 31 March 2020 (5,925)
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Statement of Financial Position 
at 31 March 2020 

 
 

 
 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
 
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 29th July 2020 and signed 
on its behalf by: 
 
 
 

J Royall   T Gabb    F Ali 
(Chair - Board)  (Chair Audit & Risk)   (Secretary) 

2020 2019
Notes £'000 £'000

Tangible fixed assets
Housing land and buildings  - gross cost 10 224,013 219,512
                                            -  depreciation 10 (27,711) (25,712)

196,302 193,800
Other fixed assets 11 2,391 2,572
Total Fixed Assets 198,693 196,372

Current assets
Stock 16 17
Trade and other debtors: amounts falling due within one 
year 12 2,550 1,471
Cash and cash equivalents 4,426 5,462

6,992 6,950

Trade and other debtors: amounts falling due after more 
than one year 13 4,618 4,720

Current liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 14 (4,615) (4,906)
Social housing and other government grants: amounts 
falling due within one year 17 (900) (896)

Net current assets/(liabilities) 1,477 1,148

Total assets less current liabilities 204,788 202,240

Non-current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 15 (98,650) (77,803)
Social housing and other government grants: amounts 
falling due after more than one year 17 (110,062) (109,427)
Provisions for liabilities 16 (2,001) (5,163)

Total net assets (5,925) 9,847

Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 18 0 0
Total reserves (5,925) 9,847
Total capital and reserves (5,925) 9,847
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FAMILY HOUSING ASSOCIATION (WALES) LIMITED 
 
Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended 31st March 2020 

 
 

 

2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Net cash generated from operating activities (see Note i) 9,090 8,649

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of tangible fixed assets - housing property additions (3,166) (2,213)

Purchase of tangible fixed assets - component additions (1,701) (1,240)

Purchase of tangible fixed assets - other fixed assets (224) (455)

Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets 42 18

Grants received 1,081 1,995

Interest received 25 16

Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid (4,373) (4,587)

Loan breakage cost including arrangement and facility fees (20,289) -

New secured loans 50,500 -

Repayment of borrowings (32,021) (37)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (1,036) 2,146

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5,462 3,316

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4,426 5,462
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Note i - Net cash generated from operating activities 2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Cash flow from operating activities
Surplus for the year after tax (18,705) 1,713

Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets - housing properties 2,365 2,321

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets - other fixed assets 378 324

Impairment of tangible fixed assets - -

Government grants utilised in the year (900) (896)

Working capital movement:
(Increase) / decrease in stock 1 -

(Increase) / decrease in trade and other debtors (876) 487

Increase / (decrease) in trade and other creditors 2,274 671

Increase / (decrease) in provisions (109) (331)

Pension costs less contribution payable (229) (212)

Adjustment for investing or financing activities:
(Profit) / Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets (15) (16)

Interest Receivable (17) (23)

Interest Payable 4,634 4,611

Loan breakage cost including arrangement and facility fees 20,289 -
Net cash generated from operating activities 9,090 8,649

Note ii - Free cash flow 2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Net cash generated from operating activities 9,090 8,649
Interest paid (4,373) (4,587)
Loan breakage cost including arrangement and facility fees (20,289) -
Interest received 25 16
Taxation paid - 2-
Adjustment for reinvestment in existing properties -
Component replacements (1,701) (1,240)
Purchase of other replacement assets (224) (455)

Free cash generated / (consumed) before loan repayments (17,472) 2,385
New loans (excluding revolving credit and overdrafts) 50,500 -
Loans repaid (excluding revolving credit and overdrafts) (32,021) (37)
Free cash generated / (consumed) after loan repayments 1,007 2,348
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1. Principle accounting policies 

 
 
Format of accounts 
 
The Association is a public benefit entity. The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 102 in the United Kingdom, the 
Accounting Requirements for Registered Social Landlords General Determination (Wales) 
2015 and the 2018 Statement of Recommended Practice for Registered Social Landlords. All 
amounts are presented in pounds sterling (GBP), which is both the functional and 
presentational currency of the Association.  
 
Basis of accounting 
 
The financial statements are prepared in the historical cost basis of accounting. 
 
Basis of preparation 
 
After reviewing the Association’s forecasts and projections, the Board has a reasonable 
expectation that the Association has adequate resources to continue in operational existence 
for the foreseeable future.  The Association therefore continues to adopt the going concern 
basis in preparing its financial statements. 
 
Turnover and revenue recognition 
 
Turnover comprises rental and service charge income, fees, amortisation of grants and 
revenue grants receivable.  
  
Rental income is recognised from the point when properties under development reach practical 
completion or otherwise become available for letting. Surpluses or deficits resulting from the 
sale of properties and fixed asset investments are shown in the income and expenditure 
account under surpluses/deficits from the sale of fixed assets. Revenue is recognised when 
sale completion of the property has been achieved. Revenue grants are receivable when the 
conditions for receipt of agreed grant funding have been met. Charges for support services 
funded under Supporting People are recognised as they fall due under the contractual 
arrangements with Administering Authorities. Amortisation of Social Housing and other 
government grants is accounted for in line with the accounting policy. 
 
Debtors 
 
Short term debtors are measured at transaction price less any impairment. Loans receivable 
are measured initially at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are measured subsequently 
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment. Where deferral of 
payment terms have been agreed at below market rate and where material, the balance is 
shown at the present value, discounted at a market rate.  
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1. Principle accounting policies (Continued) 

 
 
Creditors 
 
Short term creditors are measured at the transaction price. Other financial liabilities including 
bank loans, are measured initially at fair value, net of transaction cost, and are measured 
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
Interest payable 
Interest is capitalised on borrowings to finance developments to the extent that it accrues in 
respect of the period of development if it represents either: 
a) interest on borrowings specifically financing the development programme after 

deduction of social housing grant (SHG) received in advance; or  
b) a fair amount of interest on borrowings of the association as a whole after deduction 

of SHG received in advance to the extent that they can be deemed to be financing 
the development programme.  

Other interest payable is charged to the statement of comprehensive income in the year. 
 
Finance 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the capital expenditure referred 
to in Note 10 & 11, will be grant aided, funded by loan or met out of reserves. 
 
Loans 
 
Loans are advanced by local authorities, building societies, banks and investment companies 
under the terms of individual mortgage deeds and security arrangements in respect of each 
property or housing scheme. 

 
Although the level of loan finance is approved by private lenders the amount of actual draw 
down throughout the financial year is determined by the Association in accordance with its 
specific requirements.  
 
Loan arrangement fees are capitalised and recognised as expenditure over the term of the 
loan through the effective interest rate applied to the loan and amendments thereto when 
subsequent fees arise during the course of such loans.  
 
Employee benefits 
 
Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised 
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 
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1. Principle accounting policies (Continued) 

 
 
Supporting People Revenue Grant 
 
Supporting People Revenue Grants are claimed by the Association as owner of the hostels. 
The grants are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of 
Financial Position of the Association.  
 
Grants and amortisation 
 
Social Housing Grants (SHG) are capital grants receivable from the Welsh Government which 
are repayable in the event of disposal, demolition or change of use to an ineligible activity, 
save in circumstances where the Welsh Government considers it appropriate to reduce the 
amount repayable. These are designed as a contribution towards the capital cost of providing 
new social housing and are received when a property is developed or acquired. 
 
Housing Finance Grants (HFG) are capital grants receivable from the Welsh Government 
which are repayable – to the extent that such amounts have been received – in the event of 
disposal, demolition or change of use to an ineligible activity. These are designed as a 
contribution towards the capital cost of providing new social housing and are received in 
instalments over a term of 30 years commencing once a scheme is approved for development.  
 
Grants received from central government agencies and local authorities are shown within 
creditors on the face of the statement of financial position. Grants relating to assets are 
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the expected useful life of the asset. 
Government grants received for housing properties are recognised in income over the 
expected useful life of the housing property structure as follows: 
 

i. Main structure 150 years 
 
Where grants are received in advance they are carried forward as current liabilities to be 
matched against future capital expenditure as it is incurred. Grants receivable in respect of 
completed schemes or those under construction are included as debtors in the financial 
statements. 
 
Grants are repayable under certain circumstances, primarily following the sale of property.  
Such repayable grants are included within creditors in the statements. 
 
Development Costs 
 
Development costs are capitalised in as much as they comprise purchase price, directly 
attributable costs to bring the properties into working condition for their intended use and 
incremental costs that would have been avoided only if the properties had not been 
constructed as required. Any other development costs which are not directly attributable have 
been written off to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
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1. Principle accounting policies (Continued) 

 
 
Shared Equity Property 
 
Where housing properties are sold under s106 agreement the net book value of the 
percentage sold is released to the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the remaining 
percentage held by the association is transferred to investments held as fixed assets. 
 
Shared Ownership 
 
The costs of shared ownership properties are accounted for as fixed assets and sales treated 
as disposals and are shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within surplus/deficit 
on sales of housing properties. 
 
Operating Leases  
 
Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantially all of the benefits and risks of 
ownership remain with the lessor are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income as 
incurred. 
 
Leased Assets 
 
Assets held under finance leases are included in the balance sheet and depreciated in 
accordance with the association’s normal accounting policies. The present value of future 
rentals is shown as a liability. 
 
The interest element of rental obligations is charged to expenditure over the period of the lease 
in proportion to the balance of capital repayments outstanding. 
 
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to expenditure on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term. 
 
Housing land and buildings and depreciation 
 
Housing properties are stated at cost. The cost of properties is their purchase price together 
with incidental costs of acquisition and direct costs of the development process.  
 
"Properties in the course of construction" are stated at cost and are transferred into "social 
housing properties" when completed. Any overhead costs directly attributable to bringing fixed 
assets into their working condition for their intended purpose are capitalised. Expenditure on 
the initial purchase of land and buildings is capitalised and disclosed as part of properties in 
the course of construction.  
 
Profit or loss on disposal of a property is recognised at the date a sale becomes certain. The 
profit or loss arising on disposal is the difference between the sale price and the total of 
depreciated cost and any associated costs of disposal such as legal and valuation fees. The 
grant originally received on a property is repayable in full at time of disposal, demolition or  
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1. Principle accounting policies (Continued) 

 
 
change of use to an ineligible activity.  Such grant is transferred to recycled grant until such 
time as it is utilised on another development or repaid to Welsh Government (WG).  
 
Some residents have rights under their tenancy agreement to purchase their homes at prices 
which are at a discount to the open market price. Some properties have been partially sold 
under shared ownership arrangements. Occupiers have full use of the properties concerned 
and pay a rent which reflects the proportional interest retained by the Association. In the 
statement of financial position, the Association’s interest is shown as a proportion of the 
original historic cost, corresponding to the interest retained. Occupiers can purchase some or 
all of that retained interest at a corresponding proportion of the current market value when that 
transaction arises.  
 
Depreciation is charged on the historic cost of property components. Freehold land is not 
depreciated. Leasehold land is depreciated over the remaining term of the lease. The 
depreciable amount is written off over the estimated useful lives from the date of purchase or 
construction.  
 
Where a housing property comprises two or more major components with substantially 
different useful economic lives, each component is accounted for separately and depreciated 
over its individual useful economic life. Expenditure relating to the subsequent replacement or 
renewal of components is capitalised as incurred.  
 
Deprecation is charged on cost on a straight-line basis over the component’s expected 
economic useful life as follows: 
 

Component No of 
Years 

Main Structure 150 
Kitchens  21 
Bathroom 30 
Heating  19 
Windows 30 
Doors 30 
Roof  55 
Electrics  40 
Solar PV Panels  25 
Solar PV Invertors 10 

 
Components on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the above and the 
remaining period of the lease.  
 
The costs of repairs and maintenance are recognised as expenses incurred in the statement 
of comprehensive income based on work done at the year end. 
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Impairment 
 
Housing properties, including those with individual components, and other assets are 
assessed whether an indication of impairment exists at each reporting date.  Where there is 
evidence of impairment, assets are written down to their recoverable amount, being the higher 
of the value in use and fair value less costs to sell. Any such write down is charged to operating 
surplus. 
 
Other tangible fixed assets and depreciation 
 
Other tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is 
charged on a straight-line basis so as to write off the cost less estimated residual value of 
assets over their expected useful economic lives as follows: 
  

Component % pa 
Office Premises 1% 
Office Furniture & Equipment 15% 
Office Refurbishment 10% 
Computer Hardware & Software 33% 
Motor vehicles 25% 
Hostel Furniture & Equipment 25% 
Service Charge Assets 3% – 33% 

 
Apportionment of Employee Administration Costs 
 
Direct employee, administration and operating costs have been apportioned to the relevant 
sections of the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the basis of actual expenditure. 
Management, finance and administration costs are further apportioned on the basis of staff 
salaries, except for development overheads, the calculation for which is based upon 
recognised development costs only. 
 
Pension obligations – defined benefit schemes 
 
The Association makes payments to defined benefit pension schemes on behalf of its 
employees. The schemes are funded by contributions partly from the employees and partly by 
the Association at rates determined by independent actuaries. The scheme assets are 
invested separately from the Association assets in independently administered multi –
employer funds. 
 
Triennial valuations by the independent actuaries of the schemes highlight the estimated 
pension liability in respect of past service commitments, and the requisite employer 
contributions resulting from the projected surplus or deficit. The fair value of plan assets, 
present value of the defined benefit obligation and the defined benefit liability are shown in the 
statement of financial position.  
 



Page 44  Annual Report and Statement of Accounts                           
 

www.fha-wales.com 

 
FAMILY HOUSING ASSOCIATION (WALES) LIMITED 
 
NOTES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ended 31st March 2020 
 
1. Principle accounting policies (Continued) 
 

 
The statement of comprehensive income reflects the current service cost, expenses and net 
interest expense of the scheme. 
 
Pension obligations – defined contribution schemes 
 
The Association makes payments to defined contribution schemes on behalf of its employees. 
The schemes are funded by fixed contributions from both employees and the Association. The 
scheme assets are invested separately from the Association assets in independently 
administered funds in the names of the employees concerned and there is no residual liability 
for the Association beyond remittance of these contributions.  
 
The associated expenditure is recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive 
income in the year in which contributions are earned. 
 
Provisions 
 
Provisions are recognised where uncertainty exists in relation to the timing or amount that may 
be required to settle potential liabilities. Any amounts provided are included as expenditure in 
the statement of comprehensive income and recognised as liabilities in the statement of 
financial position based upon the Group’s best estimate of the associated liability. 
 
Hostels Managed by Agencies 
 
Supporting People Revenue Grants are claimed by the Association as owner of the hostels. 
The grants are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of 
Financial Position of the Association. The treatment of other income and expenditure in 
respect of hostels depends on whether the Association carries the financial risk. 
 
Where the Association directly manages the hostel and carries the financial risk, for example, 
for losses from voids and arrears, all the hostel’s income and expenditure is included in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
 
For hostels run by an independent agency the Association still has a financial risk in the 
eventuality of the agency failing. In this case income and expenditure of the agency is excluded 
from the income and expenditure of the Association, but details of the gross rents receivable 
are shown in Note 2(c). 
 
Stock 
 
Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, after making due allowance 
for obsolete and slow-moving items. 
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Asset held for resale – Property 
 
Non-current assets and associated liabilities are classified as held for sale when their carrying 
amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing use and 
a sale is highly probable. 
 
Assets designated as held for sale are held at the lower of carrying amount at designation and 
fair value less costs to sell.  Depreciation is not charged against property, plant and equipment 
classified as held for sale. 
 
VAT 
 
The Association is registered for and subject to VAT on a partial exemption basis.  Expenditure 
is shown inclusive of any irrecoverable VAT suffered on the acquisition of goods and services. 
 
Taxation 
 
The Association is registered with charitable status as a Housing Association and is registered 
under The Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014. It benefits from 
corporation tax exemptions available to charitable bodies. For activities which fall within its 
charitable purposes, no provision for corporation tax is made. 

 
The Association has invested in a programme of fitting solar panel technology to some of its 
properties.  The solar panels are eligible for government funded feed in tariff, which will 
generate an income based on energy produced.  This income is deemed outside its charitable 
purpose and is subject to corporation tax. 
 
Deferred Taxation 

The payment of taxation is deferred or accelerated because of timing differences between the 
treatment of certain items for accounting and taxation purposes. Except as noted below, full 
provision for deferred taxation is made under the liability method on all timing differences that 
have arisen, but not reversed by the balance sheet date.  Deferred tax is measured at the tax 
rates that are expected to apply in the periods when the timing differences are expected to 
reverse, based on tax rates and law enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet 
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted. 

Significant management judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are 
based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed  
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1. Principle accounting policies (Continued) 
 

on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which 
the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. 
 
The following are management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the 
Association that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 
statements. 
 

(1) Impairment of social housing properties 
The Association has to make an assessment as to whether an indicator of impairment 
exists. In making the judgement, management considered the detailed criteria set out in 
the SORP. Specifically, this includes whether there is an impairment indicator for a cash-
generating unit.  For these purposes a cash-generating unit is defined as a property 
scheme.  

 
(2) Defined benefit pension scheme 

The Association has obligations to pay pension benefits to certain employees. The cost 
of these benefits and the present value of the obligation depend on a number of factors, 
including; life expectancy, salary increases, asset valuations and the discount rate on 
corporate bonds. Management estimates these factors in determining the net pension 
obligation in the balance sheet. The assumptions reflect historical experience and 
current trends. 

 
(3) Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment 

 
Tangible fixed assets are depreciated over their useful lives based on various factors. 
The actual lives of the assets are re-assessed on a periodic basis and may vary 
depending on the standard of the asset. For housing property assets, the assets are 
broken down into components based on management’s assessment of the properties 
and the specific costs incurred in replacing these components.  Individual useful 
economic lives are assigned to these components.  The accounting policies above show 
the useful economic lives used for each asset. 
 

(4) Bad and Doubtful debts 
The estimate for Bad & Doubtful debts is based on the aged balance of the debt and the 
tenancy status.  All debts are provided for on a sliding scale depending on number of 
weeks outstanding with any debt over 11 weeks being fully provided.  All former tenant 
debt is fully provided 

 
The Association makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting 
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates 
and assumptions underlying the depreciation of property assets have a significant risk of 
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year.  
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a) Particulars of turnover, operating costs and operating surplus 
 

   

Operating Operating Operating Operating

Turnover Costs Surplus Turnover Costs Surplus

2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Social Housing lettings (Note 2b) 20,731 (15,285) 5,446 20,250 (14,334) 5,916

Other social housing activities
Property Improvements Grant 458 (451) 7 438 (457) (19)

Other 1,202 (469) 733 819 (433) 386
Total 22,391 (16,205) 6,186 21,507 (15,224) 6,283
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b) Particulars of income and expenditure from social housing lettings 

 
 
c) Turnover of indirectly Managed Hostel Agencies 

 
 

 
  

General
needs and
sheltered Supported 2020 2019

housing Housing Total Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income
Rent receivable 13,721 395 14,116 13,800

Service charge income 2,158 571 2,729 2,576

Grant Income for support services 987 1,999 2,986 2,978
Amortisation of social housing and other 
government grants 878 22 900 896

Turnover from social housing lettings 17,744 2,987 20,731 20,250

Operating costs
Management costs 4,020 2,145 6,165 6,135

Service charges 2,036 551 2,587 2,370

Routine maintenance 3,674 123 3,797 3,199

Major repairs expenditure 184 6 190 110

Bad debts 37 7 44 137

Depreciation of housing properties 2,315 50 2,365 2,319

Impairment property assets - - - -

Development and other costs 63 - 63 -

Property Lease payments 75 - 75 65

Operating costs on social housing activities 12,403 2,882 15,285 14,334

Operating Surplus on social housing lettings 5,341 105 5,446 5,916

Memorandum information: Rent loss due to voids (216) (80) (296) (205)

2020 2019
Total Total
£'000 £'000

Gross rents receivable 240 240

These figures exclude void charges.
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The average number of staff (including executive officers) employed during the year was: 
 

 
 
  

2020 2020 2019 2019

Number F.T.E Number F.T.E

Corporate Staff 27                   24                   25                   22                   

Operations Staff 76                   76                   67                   65                   

Care & Support staff 159                 132                 166                 131                 

Total 262                 232                 258                 218                 

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Staff Costs
Wages and Salaries 5,089 4,813
Settlement costs - 102
Social security costs 383 357
Pension costs 277 192

5,749 5,464
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4. Board members and Executives 

 
 

 
 
 
The highest paid senior executive during the period excluding settlements was the Chief 
Executive.  The total emoluments of the highest paid senior executive excluding pension 
contributions and settlement agreements were £78k (2019: £94k). 
 
Pension costs are shown as contributions paid on the senior executive’s behalf. The 
number of senior executives accruing retirement benefits is 3 (2019: 3). 
 
The full-time equivalent number of all staff including directors whose remuneration payable 
(including pension costs) in the period fell within the following bands was: 
 
 
 2020 2019 
£60,000 - £69,999 - - 
£70,000 - £79,999 - 1 
£80,000 - £89,999                 * 2 1 
£90,000 - £99,999 - - 
£100,000 - £109,999 - 1 
£110,000 - £119,999 - - 
£120,000 - £129,999 - - 
£130,000 - £139,999 - - 
£140,000 - £149,999 - - 
£150,000 - £159,999            * - 1 

 
* In 2019 total emoluments include salary, payment of outstanding annual leave, settlement 

& notice pay. 
 
The Chief Executive and Executive Directors are ordinary members of the contributory 
pension scheme – no enhancement or special terms apply, and the Association makes no 
contribution to any individual pension arrangement. 
 
None of the board members received emoluments.  Expenses paid to Board Members 
amounted to £803 (2019: £908).   
 
  

Basic Benefits in Pension 2019
Salary kind Contributions Total Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Aggregate emoluments of executive officers 256 - 24 280 336

2020
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6. Surplus/(Loss) on disposal of Fixed Assets 

 
 

 
 
 
  

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Surplus for the year from continuing activities is stated 
after charging/(crediting):

Depreciation of properties 2,256 2,321

Depreciation of other assets 378 324

Amortisation (900) (896)

Surplus on disposal of fixed assets 15 16

Bad Debts 44 137

Auditors' remuneration:

- In their capacity as auditors 22 22

- Other services 14 12

Lease Payments:

- Land and buildings 75 65

- Other assets 148 34

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Proceeds 42 18

Less Historical Cost (74) (81)

Add Depreciation 47 79

Add Grant Funding - -

15 16

Less Miscellaneous Costs - -

Less Transfers to Recycled Grant - -

Surplus/(deficit) on sale of fixed assets 15 16
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7. Interest Receivable 

 
 

 
 
 
8. Interest Payable and Similar Charges 

 
 

 
 
An average rate of interest set at 5.8% (2019: 5.9%) has been used to calculate the finance 
costs capitalised. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Interest receivable from investments 17 23

Total interest receivable 17 23

2020 2019
£'000 £'000

On bank loans and overdrafts and other loans:

Repayable wholly or partly in more than 5 years 4,659 4,571

Loan breakage cost including arrangement fees 20,289 -

Loan arrangement and facility fees (124) -

Amortised loan arrangement fees 1 -

Capitalised development interest (18) (63)

Discount factor on pension liability (interest) 116 103
Total interest payable 24,923 4,611
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9. Taxation 

 
 

 
 
The Association is registered with charitable status as a Housing Association and is registered 
under The Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014. It benefits from 
corporation tax exemptions available to charitable bodies.  
 
The majority of the Associations activities fall within its charitable purposes and its funds are 
applied only for these purposes; no provision for corporation tax is made. 
 
The Association has invested in a programme of installing solar panel technology to some of 
its properties.  The solar panels are eligible for government funded feed in tariff, which will 
generate an income based on energy produced.  This income is subject to corporation tax. 

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Current tax reconciliation
Taxable surpluses / (losses) on ordinary activities - -

Current tax
United Kingdom Corporation Tax at 19% (2019: 19%) - -

Over provision in previous year - (2)

Current taxation charge - (2)
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10. Tangible fixed assets – Housing land and buildings 

 
 

 
 
The HARPS residential properties are a leasehold scheme which will be handed back to the 
freehold owner at the end of the lease. The term of these leases ranges from between 13 and 
33 years. 
 
Additions to existing properties completed comprise of £455,000 for component items. 
 
Expenditure on properties charged directly to Statement of Comprehensive Income is detailed 
as per the operating costs note 2(b). 

Social HARPS Properties in
Housing Housing the course of

Properties Properties Construction Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 1st April 2019 216,686 2,034 792 219,512
Property acquisitions 1,872 - 1,294 3,166
Schemes completed (23) - 23 -
Component additions to existing properties 1,701 - - 1,701
Components disposals (360) (6) - (366)
At  31st March 2020 219,876 2,028 2,109 224,013

Depreciation
At 1st April 2019 24,114 1,598 - 25,712
Charge for Year 2,194 62 - 2,256
Components disposals (251) (6) - (257)
At  31st March 2020 26,057 1,654 - 27,711

Net book value
At  31st March 2020 193,819 374 2,109 196,302
At 31st March 2019 192,572 436 792 193,800

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Housing properties comprise:

Freehold land and buildings 155,953 153,965

Short leasehold land and buildings 1,129 1,115

Long leasehold land and buildings 39,220 38,720

Total housing land and buildings 196,302 193,800
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11. Other tangible fixed assets 

 
 

 
 
None of the above assets were held under finance leases or hire purchase contracts.  
 
 
 
 

Furniture Lottery
Freehold Motor  and Funded

Offices Vehicles Equipment Equipment Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 1st April 2019 673 120 5,191 - 5,984
Additions 13 - 211 - 224
Reclassification - - - - -
Adjustment - - - - -
Disposals - (46) (28) - (74)
At  31st March 2020 686 74 5,374 - 6,134

Depreciation
At 1st April 2019 215 118 3,079 - 3,412
Charge for Year 26 1 351 - 378
Eliminated on disposals - (46) (1) - (47)
At  31st March 2020 241 73 3,429 - 3,743

Net book value
At  31st March 2020 445 1 1,945 - 2,391
At 31st March 2019 458 2 2,112 - 2,572
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12. Trade and other debtors: amounts falling due within one year 
 
 

 

 
 

2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Rent arrears 856 737

Less: Provision for bad and doubtful Rental debts (214) (289)

Development Grants receivable 102 97

SHG Grants receivable 55 35

Other grants receivable 71 26

Prepayments 629 419

Other debtors 1,095 504

Due from Hostel managing agents 26 56

Interest receivable 4 12

Insurance claims 8 (10)

Less: Provision for bad and doubtful General debts (82) (116)
Total debtors due within one year 2,550 1,471
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13. Trade and other debtors: amounts falling due after more than one 

year 
 

 

 
 
14. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

 
 

 
 
Housing loans are shown net of capitalised loan fees of £60k (2019: £21k). 

2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Capital Debtor 4,618 4,720

Total debtors due within one year 4,618 4,720

2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Social Housing Grant In Advance 28 485

Loan interest and similar charges 659 384

Corporation Tax - -

Value Added Tax 6 5

PAYE and Social Security 94 117

Pensions 6 6

Purchase ledger & other creditors 724 801

Accruals 945 965

Rents paid in advance 203 314

Maintenance creditors 756 834

Development Contract Creditors 1,076 996

Premium on Issue of Bond 161 -

Housing Loans (43) (1)
Total creditors due within one year 4,615 4,906
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15. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 

 
 

 
 
Housing loans are shown net of capitalised loan fees of £979k (2019: £557k). 
 
Housing loans are secured by specific charges on the Association's housing properties. Rates 
of interest during the year ranged from 1.88% to 10.99%. The weighted average rate of interest 
was 5.8% (2019: 5.9%). At 31 March 2020, 53% (2019: 96%) of loans bore interest at fixed 
rates and 47% (2019: 4%) at variable rates. 
 
At 31 March 2020 Housing loans are provided by banks £75.6m (2019: £65.6m) and a bond 
issue of £21.2m (£2019: £12.7m). During the year the Association repaid £32m of loans and 
drew down £50.5m of new loans. 
 
The housing loans are repaid in half yearly and quarterly instalments over terms of 10 – 60 
years.  The final instalments fall to be repaid in the period 2030 to 2051. 
  

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Housing Loans 95,897 77,778
Premium on Issue of Bond 2,728 -
Pension Creditor 25 25

Total creditors due after more than one year 98,650 77,803

Housing loans are repayable as follows: 2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Amounts falling due:
Within one year or less (43) (1)

Between one and two years (54) (10)
Between two and five years (166) (53)
In five years or more 96,117 77,841

In more than one year 95,897 77,778

Total housing loans 95,854 77,777
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16. Pension provision 

 
 

   

2020 2019
£'000 £'000

At 1st April 2019 5,163 2,586
Re-measurement of opening pension liability - 1,527

5,163 4,113

Discount factor on pension liability (interest) 116 102
Employer contribution paid including deficit contributions (692) (597)
Current service cost 347 301

(229) (194)

Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest 
cost) - gain (loss) (300) (213)
Experience gains and losses arising on the plan liabilities - gain (loss) (15) 40
Effects of changes in the demographic assumptions underlying the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation - gain (loss) (175)

55
Effects of changes in the financial assumptions underlying the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation - gain (loss) (2,443) 1,362

Total actuarial gains and losses (before restriction due to some of the 
surplus not being recognisable) - gain (loss) (2,933) 1,244

Effects of changes in the amount of surplus that is not recoverable 
(excluding amounts included in net interest cost) - gain (loss) - -

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income - gain (loss) (2,933) 1,244
At 31st March 2020 2,001 5,163

2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Defined benefit scheme 2,001 5,163
Growth plan - -
At 31st March 2020 2,001 5,163
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17. Social housing and other government grants 

 
 
 

   

Social HARPS Properties in
Housing Housing the course of

Properties Properties Construction Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Gross grant creditor
At 1st April 2019 120,892 1,544 1,485 123,921
Property acquisitions 1,081 - 458 1,539
Schemes completed 693 - (693) -
Reclassification - - - -
Housing property disposals - - - -
At  31st March 2020 122,666 1,544 1,250 125,460

Amortisation
At 1st April 2019 12,457 1,141 - 13,598
Credit for year 850 50 - 900
Housing property disposals - - - -
At  31st March 2020 13,307 1,191 - 14,498

Net grant creditor
At  31st March 2020 109,359 353 1,250 110,962

At 31st March 2019 108,435 403 1,485 110,323

The grants are amortised as follows: 2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Amounts falling due:
Within one year or less 900 896

Between one and two years 900 896

Between two and five years 2,700 2,688

In five years or more 106,462 105,843

In more than one year 110,062 109,427
Total grant creditor 110,962 110,323
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18. Called-up share capital 

 
 

 
 
Shareholders have no equity interest in the Association; they have no right to any dividend 
distribution on winding up.  In addition, there is no provision for the redemption of shares, the 
value of the share being written back to reserves.  Shareholders have the right to vote at 
General meetings of the Association. 
 
 
19. Capital commitments 

 
 

 
 
The above capital commitments will be financed using a mixture of Social Housing Grant 
(SHG), Housing Finance Grant (HFG)  and Private Finance.  The private finance will come 
from existing funds. 
 
  

2020 2019

£ £
Allotted, issued and fully paid
At 1st April 2019 26 30
Issued during the year 4 3
Shares cancelled during the year (1) (7)
At  31st March 2020 29 26

2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Capital expenditure that has been contracted for but 
has not been provided for in the financial statements 29 1,301

Capital expenditure that has been authorised by the 
Board of Management but has not yet been contracted 
for 1,082 -
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20. Operating Leases 

 
 
Future minimum amounts payable under non-cancellable operating lease agreements are as follows: 
 

  
 
 
21. Accommodation units 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Properties Other 2020 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Within one year 69 111 180 122
In two to five years 210 163 373 316
In over 5 years 262 - 262 254
Total 541 274 815 692

2020 2019

Number Number

Accommodation in Management
General Needs, Sheltered & Extra Care at end of year 2,670 2,658

Shared Ownership,  Fixed Equity & Leasehold at end 
of year 38 38

Supported Housing at end of year 95 95

2,803 2,791

Accommodation Managed by others
General Needs, Sheltered & Extra Care at end of year 8 8

Supported Housing at end of year 56 56

64 64

Total number of units 2,867 2,855
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22. Pensions - SHPS Scheme 
 

 
The company participates in the Social Housing Pension Scheme (the Scheme), a multi-
employer scheme which provides benefits to some 500 non-associated employers. The 
Scheme is a defined benefit scheme in the UK. 
 
The Scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came 
into force on 30 December 2005. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions 
Regulator and Technical Actuarial Standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council, set 
out the framework for funding defined benefit occupational pension schemes in the UK. 
 
The last triennial valuation of the scheme for funding purposes was carried out as at 30 
September 2017. This valuation revealed a deficit of £1,522m. A Recovery Plan has been put 
in place with the aim of removing this deficit by 30 September 2026. 
 
The Scheme is classified as a 'last-man standing arrangement'. Therefore, the company is 
potentially liable for other participating employers' obligations if those employers are unable to 
meet their share of the scheme deficit following withdrawal from the Scheme. Participating 
employers are legally required to meet their share of the Scheme deficit on an annuity 
purchase basis on withdrawal from the Scheme. 
 
For financial years ending on or before 28 February 2019, it has not been possible for the 
company to obtain sufficient information to enable it to account for the Scheme as a defined 
benefit scheme, therefore the company has accounted for the Scheme as a defined 
contribution scheme. For financial years ending on or after 31 March 2019, it is possible to 
obtain sufficient information to enable the company to account for the Scheme as a defined 
benefit scheme. 
 
For accounting purposes, two actuarial valuations for the scheme were carried out with 
effective dates of 31 March 2018 and 30 September 2018. The liability figures from each 
valuation are rolled forward to the relevant accounting dates, if applicable, and are used in 
conjunction with the company’s fair share of the Scheme’s total assets to calculate the 
company’s net deficit or surplus at the accounting period start and end dates. Family Housing 
Association (Wales) Ltd agreed the following deficit contributions, from 1st April 2019 to 30th 
September 2026 £486,032 per annum (increasing by 2% per annum). 
 
Expenses for death-in-service insurance, administration and Pension Protection Fund (PPF) 
Levy are included in the contribution rate. Where the scheme is in deficit and where the 
company has agreed to a deficit funding arrangement, the company recognises a liability for 
this obligation. The amount recognised is the net present value of the deficit reduction 
contributions payable under the agreement that relates to the deficit. The present value is 
calculated using the discount rate detailed in these disclosures. The unwinding of the discount 
rate is recognised as a finance cost. 
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23. Pensions - SHPS Scheme (Continued) 
 

Three of the existing structures are closed, one is based on a final salary with a 1/60th accrual 
rate, one is based on a final salary with a 1/70th accrual rate and the other is based on final 
salary with a 1/80th accrual rate. One of the existing structures is closed to new members and 
is based on career average revalued earnings (CARE) with a 1/60th accrual rate. The last 
structure is still open to new members is based on career average revalued earnings (CARE) 
with a 1/80th accrual rate. 
 
During the accounting period the Group paid contributions at the rate of 8% to 30 June 2019 
and 13.4% from 1 July 2019 in respect of the CARE 1/60th accrual rate structure, 8% to 30 
June 2019 and 12.1% from 1 July 2019 in respect of the CARE 1/80th accrual rate structure, 
and 3% in respect of the defined contribution scheme. As at the statement of financial position 
date there were 84 (2019: 82) active members of the defined benefit schemes and 114 (2019: 
100) active members of the defined contribution scheme. 
 
During the year the association made payments of £486,000 (2019: £435,000) to the Social 
Housing Pension Scheme for the recovery plan of the past service deficit. 
 
Present values of defined benefit obligation, fair value of assets and defined benefit 
asset (liability) 
 

 
 
Reconciliation of the impact of the asset ceiling 
 

 

2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Fair value of plan assets 15,541 14,573
Present value of defined benefit obligation 17,542 19,736
Surplus (deficit) in plan (2,001) (5,163)
Unrecognised surplus - -
Defined benefit asset (liability) to be recognised (2,001) (5,163)

2020
£'000

Impact of asset ceiling at start of period -
Effect of the asset ceiling included in net interest cost -
Issued during the year -
Shares cancelled during the year -
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22. Pensions - SHPS Scheme (Continued) 

 
  
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the defined benefit obligation 
 

 
 
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets 
 

 
 
  

2020
£'000

Defined benefit obligation at start of period 19,736
Current service cost 347
Expenses 19
Interest expense 457
Member contributions 113
Actuarial losses (gains) due to scheme experience (15)
Actuarial losses (gains) due to changes in demographic assumptions (175)
Actuarial losses (gains) due to changes in financial assumptions (2,443)
Benefits paid and expenses (497)
Defined benefit obligation at end of period 17,542

2020
£'000

Fair value of plan assets at start of period 14,573
Interest income 341

300
Employer contributions 711
Member contributions 113
Benefits paid and expenses (497)
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 15,541

Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in interest 
income) - gain (loss)
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22.  Pensions - SHPS Scheme (Continued) 

 
 
Defined benefit costs recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Income (SoCI) 
 

 
 
Defined benefit costs recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 
 

 
 
 

2020
£'000

Current service cost 347
Expenses 19
Net interest expense 116

482
Defined benefit costs recognised in Statement of Comprehensive 
Income (SoCI)

2020
£'000

300
15

175

2,443

2,933

-
2,933

Effects of changes in the financial assumptions underlying the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation - gain (loss)
Total actuarial gains and losses (before restriction due to some of the 
surplus not being recognisable) - gain (loss)
Effects of changes in the amount of surplus that is not recoverable 
(excluding amounts included in net interest cost) - gain (loss)  g    p    g  
(loss)

Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net 
interest cost) - gain (loss)
Experience gains and losses arising on the plan liabilities - gain (loss)
Effects of changes in the demographic assumptions underlying the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation - gain (loss)
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22. Pensions - SHPS Scheme (Continued) 

 
 
Assets 
 

 
 
None of the fair values of the assets shown above include any direct investments in the 
employer’s own financial instruments or any property occupied by, or other assets used by, 
the employer.  
 

2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Global Equity 2,273 2,452
Absolute Return 810 1,261
Distressed Opportunities 299 265
Credit Relative Value 426 267
Alternative Risk Premia 1,087 840
Fund of Hedge Funds 9 66
Emerging Markets Debt 471 503
Risk Sharing 525 440
Insurance-Linked Securities 477 418
Property 342 328
Infrastructure 1,157 764
Private Debt 313 196
Opportunistic Illiquid Credit 376 -
Corporate Bond Fund 886 680
Liquid Credit 6 -
Long Lease Property 269 214
Secured Income 590 522
Over 15 Year Gilts - -
Index Linked All Stock Gilts - -
Liability Driven Investment 5,158 5,329
Net Current Assets 67 28
Total assets 15,541 14,573
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22. Pensions - SHPS Scheme (Continued) 

 
 
Key assumptions 
 

 
The mortality assumptions adopted at 31 March 2020 imply the following life expectancies: 
 

 
 
From 1 April 2016 Family Housing Association (Wales) Ltd change the basis of the defined 
benefit schemes to the following: 

 Career average re-valued earnings with a 1/60th accrual rate. 
 Career average re-valued earnings with a 1/80th accrual rate. 
 Defined Contribution benefit structure for auto enrolment 

 
Employees were block transferred into the appropriate scheme from the 1 April 2016.  The 
60th & 70th defined benefit schemes have now been closed to all employees.  New employees 
from the 1 April 2016 can only join the career average re-valued earnings with a 1/80th accrual 
rate. 
 
During the accounting period Family Housing Association (Wales) Ltd paid contributions at the 
rate of 8% for the 60th scheme, 8% for the 80th scheme and 3% for the Defined Contribution 
scheme. 
 
Member contributions varied between 7.1% to 9.1% for 60th scheme, 3% to 5% for the 80th 
scheme, depending on their age and 5% for the Defined contribution scheme. 

2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Discount Rate 2.37% 2.31%

Inflation (RPI) 2.60% 3.29%

Inflation (CPI) 1.60% 2.29%

Salary Growth 2.60% 3.29%

Allowance for commutation of pension for cash at 
retirement

75% of 
maximum 
allowance

75% of 
maximum 
allowance

Life 
expectancy at 

age 65
£'000

Male retiring in 2020 22
Female retiring in 2020 23
Male retiring in 2040 23

25Female retiring in 2040
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22. Pensions – Growth Plan 

 
 
The company participates in the scheme, a multi-employer scheme which provides benefits to 
some 950 non-associated participating employers. The scheme is a defined benefit scheme 
in the UK. It is not possible for the company to obtain sufficient information to enable it to 
account for the scheme as a defined benefit scheme. Therefore, it accounts for the scheme 
as a defined contribution scheme. 

The scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came 
into force on 30 December 2005. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions 
Regulator and Technical Actuarial Standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council, set 
out the framework for funding defined benefit occupational pension schemes in the UK. 

The scheme is classified as a 'last-man standing arrangement'. Therefore, the company is 
potentially liable for other participating employers' obligations if those employers are unable to 
meet their share of the scheme deficit following withdrawal from the scheme. Participating 
employers are legally required to meet their share of the scheme deficit on an annuity purchase 
basis on withdrawal from the scheme. 

A full actuarial valuation for the scheme was carried out at 30 September 2017. This valuation 
showed assets of £794.9m, liabilities of £926.4m and a deficit of £131.5m. To eliminate this 
funding shortfall, the Trustee has asked the participating employers to pay additional 
contributions to the scheme as follows: 

Deficit contributions 

From 1 April 2019 to 31 January 2025: £11,243,000 per annum (payable monthly and 
increasing by 3% each on 1st April) 

Unless a concession has been agreed with the Trustee the term to 31 January 2025 applies. 

Note that the scheme’s previous valuation was carried out with an effective date of 30 
September 2014. This valuation showed assets of £793.4m, liabilities of £969.9m and a 
deficit of £176.5m.  To eliminate this funding shortfall, the Trustee has asked the 
participating employers to pay additional contributions to the scheme as follows: 

Deficit contributions 
From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 
2025: 

£12,945,440 per annum (payable monthly and 
increasing by 3% each on 1st April) 

From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 
2028: 

£54,560 per annum (payable monthly and 
increasing by 3% each on 1st April) 

The recovery plan contributions are allocated to each participating employer in line with their 
estimated share of the Series 1 and Series 2 scheme liabilities.  
 
Where the scheme is in deficit and where the company has agreed to a deficit funding 
arrangement the company recognises a liability for this obligation. The amount recognised is 
the net present value of the deficit reduction contributions payable under the agreement that  



Page 70  Annual Report and Statement of Accounts                           
 

www.fha-wales.com 

FAMILY HOUSING ASSOCIATION (WALES) LIMITED 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ended 31st March 2020 
 
22. Pensions – Growth Plan (Continued) 

 
 
relates to the deficit. The present value is calculated using the discount rate detailed in these 
disclosures. The unwinding of the discount rate is recognised as a finance cost. 
 
RECONCILIATION OF OPENING AND CLOSING PROVISIONS 
 

 
Period Ending 
31 March 2020 
(£000s) 

Period Ending 
31 March 2019 
(£000s) 

Provision at start of period 31 49 

Unwinding of the discount factor (interest expense) - 1 

Deficit contribution paid (5) (6) 

Remeasurements - impact of any change in assumptions - - 

Remeasurements - amendments to the contribution schedule (1) (13) 

Provision at end of period 25 31 
 
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE IMPACT 
 

 
Period Ending 
31 March 2020 
(£’000s) 

Period Ending 
31 March 2019 
(£’000s) 

Interest expense - 1 

Remeasurements – impact of any change in assumptions - - 

Remeasurements – amendments to the contribution schedule - (13) 

Contributions paid in respect of future service - - 

Costs recognised in income and expenditure account - (12) 
 
ASSUMPTIONS 
 

 31 March 2020 
% per annum 

31 March 2019 
% per annum 

31 March 2018 
% per annum 

Rate of discount 2.53 1.39 1.71 

 
The discount rates shown above are the equivalent single discount rates which, when used to 
discount the future recovery plan contributions due, would give the same results as using a full 
AA corporate bond yield curve to discount the same recovery plan contributions. 
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22.  Pensions – Growth Plan (Continued) 

 
 
The following schedule details the deficit contributions agreed between the company and the 
scheme at each year end period: 
 
DEFICIT CONTRIBUTIONS SCHEDULE 
 

Year ending 31 March 2020 
(£000s) 

31 March 2019 
(£000s) 

31 March 2018 
(£000s) 

Year 1 5 5 6 
Year 2 5 5 6 
Year 3 6 5 7 
Year 4 6 6 7 
Year 5 5 6 7 
Year 6 - 5 7 
Year 7 - - 8 
Year 8 - - 8 
Year 9 - - 4 

 
The company must recognise a liability measured as the present value of the contributions 
payable that arise from the deficit recovery agreement and the resulting expense in the income 
and expenditure account i.e. the unwinding of the discount rate as a finance cost in the period 
in which it arises. 
 
It is these contributions that have been used to derive the company's balance sheet liability. 
 
23. Analysis of changes in net debt 

 
 

 
 
Loans are shown gross of loan arrangement fees. 
  

At 1 April 
2019 Cashflows New loans

Other non 
cash 

movements
At 31 March 

2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cash 5,462 (1,036) 4,426

Bank loans due within one year (21) 21 (17) (17)

Bank loans due greater than one year (78,333) 32,000 (50,500) 17 (96,816)

Premium on issue of bond due within one year - - (161) - (161)

Premium on issue of bond due greater than one year - - (2,739) 11 (2,728)

Total (72,892) 30,985 (53,400) 11 (95,296)
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24. Legal status 

 
 
The Association is incorporated under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 
2014 (registration number: 21057R) and is a registered social landlord (National Assembly for 
Wales registration number: L002). 
 
25. Related Party Transactions 

 
 
Board Members 
All Board members who are also tenants of Family Housing Association (Wales) Ltd have 
standard tenancy agreements on normal commercial terms and receive no advantage in being 
members of the Board of Management. 
 
Other 
Mr M Channell was appointed to the Board of management as at 2 June 2016 and resigned 
on 25 September 2019.  Mr M Channell is also Operations Director at TSW Management 
Limited who carried out training services for FHA (Wales) Ltd.  The transactions were 
conducted at an arm’s length basis. While he was a Board member these amounted £Nil for 
the year (2019 - £884). 
 
26. Contingent Liabilities 

 
 
a) The Association amortises government grants over the useful life of the properties, as 

required by Housing SORP 2018. Although the Association has no current plans to sell its 
housing land and buildings, if it were to then government grants may become repayable. 
The total contingent liability as at 31 March 2020 is £14,498k (2019: £13,598k). This 
represents amortised amounts of social housing and other government grants.  

b) The Association is a participating employer member of the Pension Trust’s Growth Plan. 
This is a multi-employer pension scheme, which is in most respects a money purchase 
arrangement, but it also has some guarantees. Employees of the Association have 
participated in the Growth Plan primarily using additional voluntary contributions (AVCs). 
In accordance with the Occupational Pension Schemes (Employer Debt on Withdrawal) 
Regulations 2005, a potential debt can arise on employers that participate in the Growth 
Plan.  
The debt will only crystallise in the event that the Association ceases to participate in the 
scheme or in the event of the scheme winding up at a time when it is not fully funded on a 
buy-out basis.  
 
The Association has been notified by the Pensions Trust that the estimated employer debt 
on withdrawal from the plan based on the financial position of the plan as at 30 September 
2016 was £85,077. 
 
An employer debt could also arise on withdrawal from the Association’s main final salary 
pension scheme arrangements through the Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS). 
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27. Contingent Liabilities (Continued) 

 
 

The estimated employer debt for the Association on withdrawal from the SHPS plan based 
on the financial position of the scheme as at 30 September 2016 was £24.0 million. As 
events which could crystallise the debt are unlikely to arise in the foreseeable future, no 
specific provision is deemed necessary. 
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